CITY OF MAPLE HEIGHTS
COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

Maple Heights Senior Center - 7:00 PM November 3, 2021
1. Caucus: 6:30 pm All Members of Council
2. Call to Order: Council President Ron Jackson
3 Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance: Councilwoman Tanglyn Madden, District 5
4, Roll Call: Council Clerk Leonette Cicirella Johnson
5. Announcements:
6. Addendum:
7 Approval of Minutes: October 20, 2021 (Regular Meeting of Council)
8. Communications:
9. Council Committee Reports:
10. Department Reports:
11. Citizens’ Comments: Per Council Rule 220.01(c )(9)

Comments from City residents will be entertained at Regular Council Meetings only, and shall
be limited to three (3) minutes per person during comments on the agenda and comments of a
general nature and no person shall be allowed to speak more than once. A person wishing to
address Council shall first be recognized by the President of Council, and when recognized,
shall come forward, state his or her name and address and state the subject matter which he
or she wishes to discuss. Total resident comments shall be limited to 45 minutes for all
comments. Under special circumstances, this rule can be extended or modified by a majority
of Council present. No profanity or comments of a personal or inflammatory nature will be
tolerated under any circumstances. The Presiding Officer shall permit a one (1) minute
response from the Mayor or Council Member or Department Director to whom the Citizen’s
question is directed.

12. Legislation:

2019-61, As Amended AN ORDINANCE ENACTING NEW CODIFIED ORDINANCE
SECTION 660.16(C ) CREATING A COST-SHARING PROGRAM WITH PRIVATE
PROPERTY OWNERS FOR THE REMOVAL OF DEAD, DISEASED, OR
DAMAGED TREES AND THOSE TREES WHOSE ROOTS HAVE ADVERSELY
IMPACTED SIDEWALKS AND SEWERS FROM TREE LAWNS, AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

This Ordinance is currently in the Finance Committee

2021-114 AN ORDINANCE ENACTING NEW CHAPTER 853 - MOBILE FOOD
SERVICE OPERATION OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE
CITY OF MAPLE HEIGHTS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

Reading 3 (Blackwell)

2021-115 AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF GENERAL
OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS OF THE CITY OF MAPLE HEIGHTS,
OHIO IN A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $7,115,000 TO REFUND
A PORTION OF THE CITY’S OUTSTANDING VARIOUS PURPOSE
IMPROVEMENT AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2010, AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.
Reading 3 (Blackwell)



2021-130 A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT THE UNIMPROVED RESIDENTIAL
LOT OWNED BY THE CITY AT 19505 LONGVIEW AVENUE,
PPN 782-09-071, IS NOT NEEDED FOR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES, AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.
Reading 1 (Blackwell)

2021-131 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A MEMBER
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT PROGRAM AGREEMENT
WITH THE NORTHEAST OHIO REGIONAL SEWER DISTRICT (NEORSD)
FOR THE SOUTHWEST SEWER DISTRICT SEWER REPAIRS PHASE 2
PROJECT IN THE CITY OF MAPLE HEIGHTS AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.

Reading 1 (Blackwell)

2021-132 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH THE NORTHEAST OHIO REGIONAL SEWER DISTRICT
(NEORSD) FOR COMMUNITY COST-SHARE PROGRAM FUNDS FOR THE
LEE ROAD AND MUSTANG DRIVE SEWER REPAIRS IN THE CITY OF
MAPLE HEIGHTS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

Reading 1 (Blackwell)

2021-133 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A
CONTRACT WITH WASTE MANAGEMENT OF OHIO, INC. FOR
RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, DISPOSAL AND RECYCLING
SERVICES FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2022-DECEMBER 31, 2026, WITH
THE OPTION FOR TWO (2) ONE-YEAR RENEWAL PERIODS, AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

Reading 1 (Blackwell)

13. Expenditures over $3,500.00:

14. Mayor’s Report:

Council/Council President’s Reports:
16. Adjournment:



ORDINANCE NO.: 2021-114

INTRODUCED BY: Mayor Annette M. Blackwell
MOTION FOR ADOPTION BY:
CO-SPONSORED BY:

AN ORDINANCE ENACTING NEW CHAPTER 853 — MOBILE FOOD
SERVICE OPERATION OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE
CITY OF MAPLE HEIGHTS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the Mayor, Human Services Director, Police Chief and the Law Director
recommend enacting a new chapter of the City’s Codified Ordinances regulating mobile food
service operations within the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Maple Heights,
County of Cuyahoga, State of Ohio, that:

Section 1. New Chapter 853 — Mobile Food Service Operation of the Codified
Ordinances of the City of Maple Heights is hereby enacted to read as follows:

CHAPTER 853

Mobile Food Service Operation

853.01 Definitions.

853.02 Operation in right of way; public or private property.
853.03 Mobile food service operation permit.

853.04 Application fee.

853.05 General regulations.

853.99 Penalty.

853.01 DEFINITIONS.
As used in this Chapter.
(a) "Food” shall mean a raw, cooked or processed edible substance, ice, beverage or
ingredient used or intended for use or for sale in whole or part for human consumption.
(b) ""Mobile food service operation” means a food service operation required to be
licensed under Ohio Revised Code that is operated from a single movable vehicle or
portable structure and that can or routinely changes location.

(¢) '""Mobile food service operation permit" shall mean the permit issued by the
Building Department pursuant to this Chapter.

(d) "Food service operation license'" means the official document issued by the
Cuyahoga County Board of Health or by another jurisdiction's health district with the
authority to inspect and license food service operations.

853.02 OPERATION IN RIGHT OF WAY; PUBLIC OR PRIVATE PROPERTY.

(a) No person shall cause a mobile food service operator to operate on any public street,
sidewalk or any private drive or walkway within the City while such public street,
sidewalk or private drive or walkway is open to normal traffic or public use.



(b) No person shall cause a mobile food service operator to operate on any public street
or sidewalk within the City or any private drive or walkway without meeting the licensing
and fee requirements of this Chapter and without an existing permit issued by the City.

(¢) Operation of a mobile food vending unit must be in compliance with all applicable
zoning requirements related to commercial activity on private property.

(d) No person shall cause a mobile food service operator to operate on public property,
including public parks, unless the mobile food service operation has an existing agreement
to participate in a permitted parade or special event or has otherwise received written
permission from the Human Services Director.

853.03 MOBILE FOOD SERVICE OPERATION PERMIT.

(a) No person shall cause a mobile food service operator to operate in the City unless the
operator has received a mobile food service operation permit from the City.

(b) An application for a mobile food service permit shall be submitted to the Building
Department by the approved event sponsor, for those vendors participating in that
approved public event or the individual operator of a food vending unit appearing at a
private event on a form provided by the Human Services Director and shall substantially
comply with this subsection. Applicants must provide the following documentation upon
submittal of the permit application:

(1) A copy of a current mobile food service operation license issued by the Cuyahoga
County Board of Health or other Board of Health having jurisdiction in the State of Ohio.

(2) Proof of general liability insurance coverage, including without limitation, bodily
injury and property damage as required by this chapter or by any City, state or federal law
or policy.

(3) Name, address, telephone number, electronic mail address of the mobile food
vending unit operator.

(4) Business name or dba, permanent address, electronic mail address and telephone
number of the owner if different than the operator.

(5) Proof of current Bureau of Workers Compensation certificate.

(6) Proof of Taxpayer Identification Number or exemption issued to owner,

(7) Proof of Ohio Department of Taxation itinerant vendors license if required.

(8) Physical description of the mobile food vending unit along with current vehicle
registration.

(9) Written permission from the property owner to operate on private property.

(10) Any other information as may be required by the Human Services Director or the
County Board of Health.

(¢) The Human Services Director shall examine all applications for a mobile food
vending license filed under this Chapter and make, or cause to be made any further
investigation into the application as is deemed necessary in order to make timely
determination regarding the application.

(d) The Human Services Director shall provide written determination to each applicant
as to the reason(s) any submitted application for a mobile food vending license is not
approved.

Ordinance No. 2021-114
Page Two



853.04 APPLICATION FEE.

(a) Each application for a mobile food vending license shall be accompanied by a non-
refundable application fee in the amount of one hundred dollars ($100.00) per approved
public event or twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per individual private event food vending unit
appearance.

853.05 GENERAL REGULATIONS.
(a) No person shall cause a mobile food service operator to:

(1) Sell food items, display food items, or conduct vending operations to the occupants
of vehicles stopped in traffic;

(2) Display food items or place lines or other devices for the display of food items on
any building or on any utility pole, planter, tree, trash container, or other sidewalk fixture;

(3) Place any food items in or upon any street or sidewalk;

(4) Leave a vending device unattended at any time during hours of operation unless,
the mobile food service operation has an existing agreement to participate in a permitted
parade or special event or has otherwise received written permission from the Human
Services Director.

(5) Conduct vending more than once per week at any one property unless associated
with a special event registered with or sponsored by the City.

(6) Food trucks/food trailers may not be parked overnight and must be removed from
the property unless associated with a special event registered with or sponsored by the
City.

(7) Utilize loudspeakers or other noise-making devices in such a way to create a
nuisance in compliance with the City's noise/nuisance regulations; or

(8) Serve alcoholic beverages from the food truck/food trailer without proper license
issued by the Ohio Department of Liquor Control.

(9) Conduct business without making available a container suitable for the placement
of litter.

(b) All mobile food service operations must:

(1) Conspicuously display evidence of their mobile food service operation permit
issued pursuant to this Chapter;

(2) Operate between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. unless, the mobile food
service operation has an existing agreement to participate in a permitted parade or special
event or has otherwise received written permission from the Human Services Director.

(3) Be constructed to internally store and contain all wastewater for proper disposal,
to prevent ground water contamination, and to prevent discharge of any wastewater onto
the ground or into any storm water sewer within the City;

(4) Obey any lawful order of a Police Officer to relocate to avoid congestion or
obstruction during an emergency;

(5) Comply with all requirements of applicable state and local law, including, without
limitation, the City's Fire Prevention Code, the State of Ohio Fire Code, the Ohio Uniform
Food Safety Code, and the City's Traffic and Zoning Codes;

Ordinance No. 2021-114
Page Three



(6) Exercise reasonable care to ensure that operations do not create a health or safety
hazard to customers, other users of the sidewalks and streets, or persons on abutting

property; and
(7) Operate at all times in accordance with the Ohio Uniform Food Safety Code.

853.99 PENALTY.

A violation of any section of this chapter shall be deemed a criminal violation as follows:

(a) Whoever violates Section 853.02 shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree.
Any such violation shall constitute a separate offense on each successive day continued.
Strict liability is intended to be imposed for a violation of this section.

(b) Whoever violates Section 853.03 shall be guilty of a minor misdemeanor. Strict
liability is intended to be imposed for a violation of these sections.

(¢) A violation of any other section of Chapter 853 may be grounds for the suspension,
revocation or permanent revocation of the mobile food vending unit license or in
the case of a new application may be grounds to refuse to issue such license for a
determinate period of time up to ninety (90) days or permanently, in addition to any other
penalties established for such violation in applicable sections of this Code.

Section 2. The Clerk of Council is authorized to forward a certified copy of this
Ordinance to the publisher of the Codified Ordinances of the City for immediate inclusion of
new Chapter 853 in the current print and electronic editions of the City’s Codified Ordinances.

Section 3. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting on the date
indicated below, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted
in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public in compliance with all legal
requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 4. This Ordinance constitutes an emergency measure necessary for the public
peace, safety and general welfare of the City and for the further reason that mobile food service
operations regulations must be adhered to by operators within the City, and provided it receives
the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members elected to Council, it shall take effect and
be in force immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor, otherwise it shall take
effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: 2021

Ron Jackson, Council President

Annette M. Blackwell, Mayor

Ordinance No. 2021-114
Page Four



Approved as to legal form:

Frank Consolo, Director of Law

ATTEST:
Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council

I, Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council of the City of Maple Heights, County of
Cuyahoga, State of Ohio, do hereby certify the above to be a true and exact copy of the original as
contained in the records of my office and that the same has been and will remain duly posted as

required by law.

Date:

Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council

Ordinance No. 2021-114
Page Five



ORDINANCE NO.: 2021-115

INTRODUCED BY: Mayor Annette M. Blackwell
MOTION FOR ADOPTION BY:
CO-SPONSORED BY:

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF GENERAL
OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS OF THE CITY OF MAPLE HEIGHTS,
OHIO IN A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $7,115,000 TO REFUND A
PORTION OF THE CITY’S OUTSTANDING VARIOUS PURPOSE
IMPROVEMENT AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2010, AND DECLARING
AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the City of Maple Heights, Ohio (the “City”) previously issued its
$12.922,911.20 General Obligation (Limited Tax) Various Purpose Improvement and Refunding
Bonds, Series 2010 (the “Series 2010 Bonds™) for the purpose of refunding certain City securities
previously issued by the City and financing certain permanent improvements; and

WHEREAS, the Council of the City (the “Council”) has determined that it is in the best
interest of the City, in order to achieve debt service savings, to issue bonds to refund all or a portion
of the outstanding Series 2010 Bonds that are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity (the
“Refunded Bonds™); and

WHEREAS, the Director of Finance of the City (the “Director of Finance™), has
previously certified to this Council that the estimated life of the projects financed or refinanced
with the Refunded Bonds was, at the time of the original issuance of the Refunded Bonds, at least
five years and has further certified the maximum maturity of the Refunded Bonds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Maple Heights,
County of Cuyahoga, State of Ohio that:

Section 1. It is declared necessary to issue bonds (the “Bonds™) of the City in an aggregate
principal amount not to exceed $7,115,000 for the purpose of refunding the Refunded Bonds,
paying the costs of refunding the Refunded Bonds, and paying the costs of issuance of the Bonds.
The aggregate principal amount of Bonds to be issued shall be in an amount determined by the
Director of Finance and set forth in the Certificate of Award described below as the amount
required to be issued, taking into account any original issue discount or original issue premium on
the sale of the Bonds, in order to refund the Refunded Bonds and pay any expenses relating to the
refunding of the Refunded Bonds and the issuance of the Bonds.

Section 2. The Bonds shall be issued in one lot and only as fully registered Bonds. The
Bonds may be issued in the denomination of $100,000 and any multiples of $1,000 in excess of
$100,000 (“‘Authorized Denominations™), but in no case as to a particular maturity date exceeding
the principal amount maturing on that date. The Bonds shall be dated as determined by the Director
of Finance in the Certificate of Award.

4813-6650-7773, v.1



The Bonds shall bear interest at the rate or rates of interest (computed on a 360-day per
year basis) as are determined by the Director of Finance to be in the best interest of the City as
provided in the Certificate of Award, which shall be signed by the Director of Finance and provide
for the award of the Bonds in accordance with Section 5 of this Ordinance (the “Certificate of
Award”™). Interest on the Bonds shall be payable semiannually on the dates (the “Interest Payment
Dates™) determined by the Director of Finance in the Certificate of Award, until the principal
amount has been paid or provided for. The Bonds shall bear interest from the most recent date to
which interest has been paid or provided for or, if no interest has been paid or provided for, from
their date. The maximum average interest rate on the Bonds shall not exceed 4% per annum.

Section 3. The Bonds shall mature serially and annually on such dates and in such principal
amounts as is fixed by the Director of Finance in the Certificate of Award, provided however, that
the Bonds stated to mature in any year may be issued as term bonds (the “Term Bonds™) payable
pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements as defined and described below.
The Director of Finance shall determine in the Certificate of Award whether any of the Bonds shall
be issued as Term Bonds and any dates (the “Mandatory Redemption Dates”) on which the
principal amount stated above shall be payable pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption
Requirements rather than at stated maturity (the “Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption
Requirements™).

The Bonds shall be subject to redemption before to stated maturity as follows:

(a) Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. If any of the Bonds are issued as Term Bonds,
the Term Bonds shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption and be redeemed pursuant
to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements, at a redemption price of 100% of the
principal amount redeemed, plus interest accrued to the redemption date, on the Mandatory
Redemption Dates.

The aggregate amount of money to be deposited with the Registrar (defined in Section 6)
for payment of principal of and interest on any Term Bonds shall include amounts sufficient to
redeem on the Mandatory Redemption Dates the principal amount of Term Bonds payable on those
dates pursuant to the Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (less the amount of any
credit as provided below).

The City shall have the option to deliver to the Registrar for cancellation Term Bonds in
any aggregate principal amount and to receive a credit against the then current Mandatory Sinking
Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligation) of the City
for any Term Bonds. That option shall be exercised by the City on or before the 30th day preceding
the applicable Mandatory Redemption Date, by furnishing the Registrar a certificate, signed by the
Director of Finance, setting forth the extent of the credit to be applied with respect to the then
current Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement. If the certificate is not timely
furnished to the Registrar, the Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and
corresponding mandatory redemption obligation) shall not be reduced. A credit against the then
current Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory
redemption obligation) also shall be received by the City for any Term Bonds which prior thereto
have been redeemed (other than through the operation of the Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption

4813-6650-7773, v.1



Requirements) or purchased for cancellation and canceled by the Registrar, to the extent not
applied theretofore as a credit against any mandatory redemption obligation.

Each Term Bond so delivered, or previously redeemed, or purchased and canceled, shall
be credited by the Registrar at 100% of the principal amount thereof against the then current
Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory redemption
obligation). Any excess of that amount over the then current Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption
Requirement shall be credited against subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption
Requirements (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligations) in the order directed by the
Director of Finance.

(b) Optional Redemption. The Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity by
and at the option of the City, in whole or in part at any time on the dates and for the prices specitied
in the Certificate of Award, provided, however, that the Director of Finance may determine in the
Certificate of Award that it is in the best interest of the City that the Bonds not be subject to
redemption prior to maturity. If the Bonds are subject to optional redemption, the maximum
redemption price shall be no greater that 103% of the principal amount redeemed, plus accrued
interest to the redemption date.

If optional redemption at a price exceeding 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed
is to take place as of any applicable Mandatory Redemption Date, the Bonds, or portions thereof,
to be redeemed optionally shall be selected by lot prior to the selection by lot of the Bonds to be
redeemed on the same date by operation of the Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption
Requirements of paragraph (a). The Bonds shall be redeemed pursuant to this paragraph only upon
written notice from the Director of Finance to the Registrar, given upon the direction of the Council
of the City by passage of an ordinance. That notice shall specify the redemption date and the
principal amount of each maturity of Bonds to be redeemed and shall be given at least 30 days
before to the redemption date or such shorter period as shall be acceptable to the Registrar. In the
event that notice of redemption shall have been given by the Registrar to the registered owners as
provided below, there shall be deposited with the Registrar on or before the redemption date, funds
which, in addition to any other moneys available therefor and held by the Registrar, will be
sufficient to redeem at the redemption price thereof, plus interest accrued to the redemption date,
all of the redeemable Bonds for which notice of redemption has been given.

(c) Partial Redemption. If fewer than all of the outstanding Bonds are called for
redemption at one time, they may be called in any order of their maturities, and if fewer than all
Bonds of a single maturity are to be redeemed, the selection of Bonds to be redeemed, or portions
thereof in Authorized Denominations, shall be made by lot by the Registrar in any manner which
the Registrar may determine. In the case of a partial redemption of Bonds by lot when Bonds of
denominations greater than the Authorized Denominations are then outstanding, each Authorized
Denomination shall be treated as though it were a separate bond of an Authorized Denomination.
If it is determined that one or more, but not all of the Authorized Denominations of principal
amount represented by a bond are to be called for redemption, then upon notice of redemption of
Authorized Denominations unit or units, the registered owner of that bond shall surrender the bond
to the Registrar (i) for payment of the redemption price of the Authorized Denomination unit or
units called for redemption (including, without limitation, the interest accrued to the date fixed for
redemption and any premium), and (ii) for issuance, without charge to the registered owner

4813-6650-7773, v.1



thereof, of a new Bond or Bonds of any Authorized Denominations or denominations in an
aggregate principal amount equal to the unmatured and unredeemed portion of, and bearing
interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date as, the Bond surrendered.

(d) Notice of Redemption. The notice of the call for redemption of Bonds shall identify
(i) by designation, letters, numbers or other distinguishing marks, the bonds or portions thereof to
be redeemed, (ii) the redemption price to be paid, (iii) the date fixed for redemption, and (iv) the
place or places where the amounts due upon redemption are payable. The notice shall be given by
the Registrar on behalf of the City by mailing a copy of the redemption notice by first class mail,
postage prepaid, at least 30 days before to the date fixed for redemption, to the registered owner
of each bond subject to redemption in whole or in part at the registered owner’s address shown on
the Register maintained by the Registrar at the close of business on the 15th day preceding that
mailing. Failure to receive notice by mail or any defect in that notice regarding any Bond,
however, shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any Bonds.

(¢) Payment of Redeemed Bonds. Notice having been mailed in the manner provided in
the preceding paragraph of this Ordinance, the Bonds and portions the Bonds called for redemption
shall become due and payable on the redemption date, and, upon presentation and surrender of
those Bonds at the place or places specified in that notice, shall be paid at the redemption price,
plus interest accrued to the redemption date. If money for the redemption of all of the Bonds and
portions of the Bonds to be redeemed, together with interest accrued on those Bonds to the
redemption date, are held by the Registrar on the redemption date, so as to be available therefor
on that date and, if notice of redemption has been deposited in the mail as described above, then
from and after the redemption date those Bonds and portions of those Bonds called for redemption
shall cease to bear interest and no longer shall be considered to be outstanding. If that money is
not available on the redemption date, or that notice was not deposited in the mail as described
above, those Bonds and portions of those Bonds will continue to bear interest, until they are paid,
at the same rate as they would have borne had they not been called for redemption. All money
held by the Registrar for the redemption of particular Bonds shall be held in trust for the account
of the registered owners of those Bonds and shall be paid to them, respectively, upon presentation
and surrender of those Bonds.

Section 4. The Bonds shall be designated “Various Purpose General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2021 as otherwise determined by the Director of Finance in the Certificate of
Award. The Bonds shall contain a summary statement of purposes encompassing the purposes for
which the Bonds are issued; shall state that they are issued pursuant to this Ordinance; shall be
executed by the Mayor and by the Director of Finance, one or both of whose signatures may be a
facsimile signature. In the absence of the Mayor, the Bonds must be executed by the President of
Council. The Bonds shall be issued only in fully registered form; and shall be registered as to both
principal and interest at the office of the Registrar. The Bonds shall be issued in the denominations
and numbers as requested by the Original Purchaser (defined below) and approved by the Director
of Finance and shall be numbered as determined by the Director of Finance. The principal of the
Bonds shall be payable upon presentation and surrender to the Registrar. Interest on any Bond
shall be paid on each Interest Payment Date by check or draft mailed to the person in whose name
that Bond is registered (the “Holder”) on the registration books of the City maintained by the
Registrar and at the address appearing thereon at the close of business of the 15th day of the
calendar month next preceding the Interest Payment Date (the “Regular Record Date™). Any

4
4813-6650-7773, v.1



interest not timely paid (the “Defaulted Interest™) shall cease to be payable to the person who is
the Holder as of the Regular Record Date and shall be payable to the person who is the Holder at
the close of business on a special record date for the payment of such defaulted interest. Such
Special Record Date (the “Special Record Date™) shall be fixed by the Council whenever moneys
become available for payment of the Defaulted Interest, and the Registrar shall cause notice of the
proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and the Special Record Date therefor to be mailed,
first class postage prepaid, not less than 10 days prior thereto to each Holder at such Holder’s
address as it appears on the registration books of the City maintained by the Registrar. The
principal and interest on the Bonds is payable in lawful money of the United States of America
without deduction for the services of the Registrar.

No Bond shall be valid or become obligatory for any purpose unless and until an
authentication certificate appearing on the Bond shall have been duly endorsed by the Registrar.

Any Bond, upon surrender of that Bond at the office of the Registrar, together with an
assignment duly executed by the Holder or such Holder’s duly authorized attorney in such form
as shall be satisfactory to the Registrar, at the option of the Holder of that Bond, may be exchanged
for Bonds of any Authorized Denomination or denominations in an aggregate principal amount
not exceeding the principal amount of the Bond so exchanged, and bearing interest at the same
rate and maturing on the same date.

Any Bond may be transferred only upon the books kept for the registration and transfer of
Bonds upon surrender thereof at the office of the Registrar together with an assignment duly
executed by the Holder or such Holder’s duly authorized attorney in such form as shall be
satisfactory to the Registrar. Upon the transfer of any such Bond and on request of the Registrar,
the City shall execute in the name of the transferee, and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver,
a new Bond, of any Authorized Denomination, in aggregate principal amount equal to the principal
amount of such Bond and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date.

In all cases in which Bonds shall be exchanged or transferred, the City shall execute, and
the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this
Ordinance. The City and Registrar may make a charge for every such exchange or transfer of
Bonds sufficient to reimburse them for any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid
with respect to such exchange or transfer, and the Registrar may require that such charge or charges
shall be paid before any such new Bond shall be delivered.

If requested by the Original Purchaser and at the Original Purchaser’s expense, the Bonds,
pursuant to the terms set forth below, may also be issued to a Depository (defined below) for use
in a book-entry system (defined below). The Director of Finance is authorized and directed, to the
extent necessary or required, to enter into any agreements determined necessary in connection with
the registration, authentication, immobilization, and transfer of Bonds, including arrangements for
the payment of principal and interest by wire transfer, after determining that the execution thereof
will not endanger the funds or securities of the City, which determination shall be conclusively
evidenced by the signing of any such agreement.

If and as long as a book-entry system is utilized, (i) the Bonds shall be issued in the form
of one fully registered Bond registered in the name of the Depository or its nominee, as registered

4813-6650-7773, v.1



owner, and immobilized in the custody of the Depository; (ii) the beneficial owners in book-entry
form shall have no right to receive Bonds in the form of physical securities or certificates;
(iii) ownership of beneficial interests in book-entry form shall be shown by a book entry on the
system maintained and operated by the Depository and its Participants (defined below), and
transfers of the ownership of beneficial interests shall be made only by book entry by the
Depository and its Participants; and (iv) the Bonds as such shall not be transferable or
exchangeable, except for transfer to another Depository or to another nominee of a Depository,
without further action by this Council.

If any Depository determines not to continue to act as a Depository for the Bonds for use
in a book-entry system, the Director of Finance may attempt to have established a securities
depository/book-entry relationship with another qualified Depository. If the Director of Finance
does not or is unable to do so, the Director of Finance, after making provision for notification of
the beneficial owners by the then Depository and any other arrangements he deems necessary,
shall permit withdrawal of the Bonds from the Depository, and authenticate and deliver bond
certificates in bearer or registered form, as the Director of Finance determines, to the assigns of
the Depository or its nominee, all at the cost and expense (including any costs of printing), if the
event is not the result of Council action or inaction, of those persons requesting such issuance.

If the Bonds are sold in a private placement and not in book-entry form, the City, if
requested by a Holder of the Bonds and at the Holder’s expense, will complete the necessary
procedures to qualify the Bonds as book-entry bonds.

As used in this Section and this Ordinance:

“Book-entry form™ or “book-entry system” means a form or system under which (i) the
beneficial right to principal and interest may be transferred only through a book entry and
(ii) physical bonds in registered form are issued only to a Depository or its nominee as registered
owner, with the bonds “immobilized” to the custody of the Depository, and the book entry is the
record that identifies the owners of beneficial interests in that principal and interest.

“Depository” means any securities depository that is a clearing agency under federal law
operating and maintaining a book-entry system to record beneficial ownership of the right to
principal and interest, and to effect transfers of bonds, in book-entry form, and includes and means
initially The Depository Trust Company (a limited purpose trust company), New York, New York.

“Participant” means any participant contracting with a Depository under a book-entry
system and includes security brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies, and clearing
corporations.

Section S. The Bonds are to be sold at private sale to a financial institution or other entity,
political subdivision or person in a private placement and shall be awarded by the Director of
Finance to the purchaser noted in the Certificate of Award (the “Original Purchaser”) with the final
purchase price, aggregate principal amount, interest rate or rates, redemption provisions, if any,
and principal installments due at stated maturity or pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund
Redemption Requirements as set forth in the Certificate of Award, in accordance with law, and
the provisions of this Ordinance at a purchase price of not less than 97% of the aggregate principal

4813-6650-7773, v.1



amount plus accrued interest to their date of delivery, all as determined by the Director of Finance
to be in the best interest of the City. The Director of Finance, if required by the Original Purchaser,
may enter into a bond purchase agreement, bondholder agreement or similar agreement with the
Original Purchaser.

The Mayor and the Director of Finance, as appropriate, are each authorized and directed to
sign any transcript certificates, financial statements and other documents, agreements,
representations and instruments and to take such actions as are necessary or appropriate to
consummate the transactions contemplated by this Ordinance. The Director of Finance shall cause
the Bonds to be prepared, and have the Bonds signed and delivered, together with a true transcript
of proceedings with reference to the issuance of the Bonds, to the Original Purchaser upon payment
of the purchase price.

The services of (a) Calfee, Halter & Griswold LLP, Bond Attorneys, Cleveland, Ohio
(“Calfee™), as Bond Counsel for the Bonds, and (b) MAS Financial Advisory Services LLC (“MAS
Financial™), as the City’s municipal advisor for the Bonds, are each retained. The fees for Calfee
shall not exceed $18,000 and the fees for MAS Financial shall not exceed $31,000, and both fees
shall be paid as part of the refunding of the Refunded Bonds. The Mayor or the Director of Finance
are authorized to execute any engagement letter or agreement in connection with the retention of
Bond Counsel or the municipal advisor as that officer determines to be appropriate and in the best
interest of the City.

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, except the accrued interest thereon, shall be paid
into the proper fund and used for the purpose for which the Bonds are being issued under the
provisions of this Ordinance and may be used to pay those certain costs set forth in Section
133.15(B), Ohio Revised Code; any such costs also may be paid out of any other lawfully available
moneys of the City and any such costs which are future financing costs may be paid from the same
sources from which the principal of and interest on the Bonds are paid. The accrued interest and
any other proceeds so designated shall be paid into the Bond Retirement Fund to be applied to the
payment of the principal and interest of the Bonds in the manner provided by law.

Section 6. The Director of Finance is appointed to act as the authenticating agent,
bond registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the Bonds (the “Registrar”). If required by the
Original Purchaser, the Director of Finance may choose a bank or trust company to act as Registrar
in that case, the Director of Finance shall sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the City,
a Bond Registrar Agreement between the City and the Registrar (the “Agreement”™). The Director
of Finance shall provide for the payment of the services rendered and for reimbursement of
expenses incurred pursuant to the Agreement from the proceeds of the Bonds to the extent
available and then from other moneys lawfully available and appropriated or to be appropriated
for that purpose.

Section 7. The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, except the accrued interest thereon
and proceeds used to pay issuance costs of the Bonds, in accordance with Section 133.34, Ohio
Revised Code, shall be deposited in either a separate account in the Bond Retirement Fund or a
separate escrow fund to be held by a bank or trust company selected by the Director of Finance
(together, the “Escrow Fund”). The money deposited in the Escrow Fund is pledged for the
purpose of refunding the Refunded Bonds. The money in the Escrow Fund to be invested must be

4813-6650-7773, v.1



invested in direct obligations of or obligations guaranteed as to payment by the United States. Any
money not so invested must remain uninvested. Any investments in the Escrow Fund must mature
or be subject to redemption by and at the option of the Holder of those investments not later than
the date or dates when the money, together with interest or other investment income accrued on
that money, will be required for the payment of principal of and interest on the Refunded Bonds.
The Mayor and the Director of Finance, or any one of them, are authorized and directed to enter
into an escrow agreement, as well as any other written documents and agreements as are necessary
in their judgment to facilitate the transactions authorized in this Ordinance on behalf of the City.
The Director of Finance is also authorized to retain, on behalf of the City, the services of an
independent public accounting firm to perform the verification, if required by Section 133.34(D),
Ohio Revised Code, of the sufficiency of amounts in the Escrow Fund to cause the Refunded
Bonds to be deemed paid and discharged. Any proceeds of the Bonds in the Escrow Fund that are
not needed to pay principal of and interest on the Refunded Bonds must be transferred to the Bond
Retirement Fund.

Section 8. For the purpose of providing the necessary funds to pay the interest on the
foregoing issue of Bonds promptly when and as the same falls due, and also to provide a fund
sufficient to pay the principal of the Bonds when due, there shall be and is levied on all taxable
property in the City, in addition to all other taxes, a direct tax annually, subject to the 10.5-mill
limitation in the City Charter, during the period the Bonds are outstanding in an amount sufficient
to provide funds to pay the interest upon the Bonds as and when the same fall due, and also to
provide a fund for the payment of the principal of the Bonds when due, which tax shall not be less
than the interest and sinking fund tax required by Section 11 of Article XII of the Constitution of
Ohio.

Section 9. The tax described in Section 8 shall within the 10.5-mill limitation imposed by
the Charter of the City, and is ordered computed, certified, levied and extended upon the tax
duplicate and collected by the same officers, in the same manner and at the same time that taxes
for general purposes for each of the years are certified, extended and collected. The tax shall be
placed before and in preference to all other items and for the full amount thereof. The funds
derived from the tax levy required by this Ordinance shall be placed in a separate and distinct fund,
which, together with the interest collected on the same (other than such interest as may be required
to be rebated to the federal government), shall be irrevocably pledged for the payment of the
principal of and interest on the Bonds when and as the same fall due; provided, however, that in
each year to the extent that revenues are available from other sources for the payment of the Bonds
and are appropriated for such purpose, the amount of such direct tax upon all of the taxable
property in the City shall be reduced by the amount of such revenues so available and appropriated.

Section 10. It is determined that all acts, conditions and things necessary to be done
precedent to and in and for the issuing of the Bonds in order to make them legal, valid and binding
obligations of the City have been performed in regular and due form as required by law; that the
full faith and credit of the City shall be and are irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the
principal and interest thereof at maturity; and that no limitation of indebtedness or taxation, either
statutory or constitutional, will be exceeded in issuing the Bonds.

Section 11. The City covenants that it will restrict the use of the proceeds of the Bonds in
such manner and to such extent, if any, as may be necessary so that the Bonds will not constitute

4813-6650-7773, v.1



arbitrage bonds under Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™).
The Director of Finance, as the fiscal officer, or any other officer of the City having responsibility
for the issuance of the Bonds shall give an appropriate certificate of the City, for inclusion in the
transcript of proceedings for the Bonds, setting forth the reasonable expectations of the City
regarding the amount and use of all the proceeds of the Bonds, the facts, circumstances and
estimates on which they are based, and other facts and circumstances relevant to the tax treatment
of the interest on the Bonds.

The City further covenants that it (a) will take or cause to be taken such actions that may
be required of it for the interest on the Bonds to be and remain excluded from gross income for
federal income tax purposes, and (b) will not take or authorize to be taken any actions that would
adversely affect that exclusion, and that it, or persons acting for it, will, among other acts of
compliance, (i) apply the proceeds of the Bonds to the governmental purpose of the borrowing,
(ii) restrict the yield on investment property acquired with those proceeds, (iii) make timely rebate
payments to the federal government, (iv) maintain books and records and make calculations and
reports, and (v) refrain from certain uses of those proceeds, all in such manner and to the extent
necessary to assure such exclusion of that interest under the Code. The Director of Finance and
other appropriate officers are authorized and directed to take any and all actions, make calculations
and rebate payments, and make or give reports and certifications, as may be appropriate to assure
such exclusion of that interest.

Section 12. The Bonds are designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations™ for purposes
of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. The City covenants that the City, having no “subordinate
entities” with authority to issue obligations within the meaning of that Section of the Code, in or
during the calendar year in which the Bonds are issued, (i) will not designate as “qualified tax-
exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code tax-exempt obligations,
including the Bonds, in an aggregate principal amount in excess of $10,000,000 and (ii) will not
issue tax-exempt obligations within the meaning of Section 265(b)(4) of the Code, including the
Bonds (but excluding any qualified 501(c)(3) bonds as defined in Section 145 of the Code and any
obligations that are private activity bonds as defined in Section 141 of the Code), in an aggregate
principal amount exceeding $10,000,000, unless the City receives an opinion of nationally
recognized bond counsel that such designation or issuance, as applicable, will not cause the Bonds
to cease to be “qualified tax-exempt obligations.”

Section 13.  If, in the judgment of the Director of Finance, the filing of an application
for a policy of insurance from a company or companies to better assure the payment of principal
and interest on the Bonds, is in the best interest of and financially advantageous to the City, the
Council authorizes and directs the Director of Finance to prepare and submit that application and
to provide to that company or companies the information required for the purpose. This Council
authorizes and approves the expenditure of the amounts necessary to secure such insurance and
authorizes and directs the Director of Finance to provide for the payment of those amounts from
any funds lawfully available that are appropriated for that purpose.

Section 14.  The Director of Finance, as fiscal officer of the City, is directed to forward
or cause to be forwarded a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Fiscal Officer of
Cuyahoga County and to secure a receipt for the delivery of this Ordinance.

4813-6650-7773, v.1



Section 15. The Mayor, Director of Finance, Law Director or Clerk of Council, as
appropriate, are each authorized and directed to prepare, execute and deliver any transcript
certificates, financial statements and other documents, agreements, representations and
instruments and to take such actions as are necessary or appropriate to consummate the issuance
of the Bonds as provided in this Ordinance.

Section 16. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and
that all such deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal
action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including
the City’s Charter, Codified Ordinances and any applicable provisions of Section 121.22, Ohio
Revised Code.

Section 17. This Ordinance is hereby determined to be an emergency measure necessary
for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety and welfare of the residents of
the City and for the further reason that the immediate issuance and sale of the Bonds is necessary
to enable the City to refund the Refunded Bonds at currently favorable market rates and,
accordingly, achieve debt service savings, and provided it receives the affirmative vote of two-
thirds (2/3) of the members elected to Council, it shall take effect and be in force immediately
upon its passage and approval by the Mayor, otherwise it shall take effect and be in force from and
after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: , 2021

Ron Jackson, Council President

Annette M. Blackwell, Mayor

Approved as to legal form:

Frank Consolo, Director of Law

ATTEST:
Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council

I, Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council of the City of Maple Heights, County of
Cuyahoga, State of Ohio, do hereby certify the above to be a true and exact copy of the original as
contained in the records of my office and that the same has been and will remain duly posted as

required by law.

Date:

Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council

10
4813-6650-7773, v.1



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-130

INTRODUCED BY: Mayor Annette M. Blackwell
MOTION FOR ADOPTION BY:
CO-SPONSORED BY:

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT THE UNIMPROVED
RESIDENTIAL LOT OWNED BY THE CITY AT 19505 LONGVIEW
AVENUE, PPN 782-09-071, IS NOT NEEDED FOR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES,
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the City’s Land Reutilization Program, as established in Chapter 1226 of the
City’s Codified Ordinances, has acquired many unimproved residential lots deemed to be of value
to adjacent homeowners and whose purchase of said lots would benefit residents of the immediate
neighborhood; and

WHEREAS, Section 1226.02 of the City’s Codified Ordinances requires that the Mayor
and the Council first determine that the unimproved residential lots owned by the City are not needed
for a municipal purpose prior to selling said lots; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Economic Development Director have determined that the
following unimproved residential lot(s) owned by the City is not needed for a municipal purpose:

Longview Avenue PPN 782-09-071

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Maple Heights,
County of Cuyahoga, State of Ohio, that:

Section 1. The following unimproved residential lot(s) owned by the City is not needed for
a municipal purpose:

19505 Longview Avenue PPN 782-09-071

Section 2. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting on the date indicated
below, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such
formal action, were in meetings open to the public in compliance with all legal requirements,
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Resolution constitutes an emergency measure necessary for the health, safety
and general welfare of the residents of the City, and to immediately allow the sale of this unimproved
residential lot to the adjacent homeowner to improve the neighborhood and provided it receives the
affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members elected to Council, it shall take effect and be in
force immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor, otherwise it shall take effect and be
in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.



PASSED: . 2021

Ron Jackson, Council President

Annette M. Blackwell, Mayor

Approved as to legal form:

Frank Consolo, Director of Law

ATTEST:
Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council

I, Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council of the City of Maple Heights, County of
Cuyahoga, State of Ohio, do hereby certify the above to be a true and exact copy of the original as
contained in the records of my office and that the same has been and will remain duly posted as
required by law.

Date:

Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council

Resolution No. 2021-130
Page Two



RESOLUTION NO.: 2021-131

INTRODUCED BY: Mayor Annette M. Blackwell
MOTION FOR ADOPTION BY:
CO-SPONSORED BY:

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A
MEMBER COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT PROGRAM
AGREEMENT WITH THE NORTHEAST OHIO REGIONAL SEWER
DISTRICT (NEORSD) FOR THE SOUTHWEST SEWER DISTRICT
SEWER REPAIRS PHASE 2 PROJECT IN THE CITY OF MAPLE
HEIGHTS AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has recommended that the City enter into the Member
Community Infrastructure Grant Program (MCIP) Agreement for the Southwest Sewer District Sewer
Repairs Phase 2 Project, which Agreement is on file with the Law Department and incorporated as if
fully rewritten herein.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Maple Heights,
County of Cuyahoga, State of Ohio that:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into the Member Community Infrastructure
Grant Program (MCIP) Agreement for the Southwest Sewer District Sewer Repairs Phase 2 Project,
which Agreement is on file with the Law Department and incorporated as if fully rewritten herein.

Section 2. The Council of the City of Maple Heights hereby authorizes the Finance Director to
amend the appropriations as required for the expenditures outlined within this Resolution.

Section 3. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting on the date indicated below,
and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action,
were in meetings open to the public in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22
of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 4. This Resolution constitutes an emergency measure necessary for the health and
general welfare of the residents of the City, and to begin the project in a timely manner so that the MCIP
project funding schedule can be maintained, and provided it receives the affirmative vote of two-thirds
(2/3) of the members elected to Council, it shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its passage
and approval by the Mayor, otherwise it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period
allowed by law.

PASSED: , 2021

Ron Jackson, Council President

Annette M. Blackwell, Mayor



Approved as to legal form:

Frank Consolo, Director of Law

ATTEST:
Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council

I, Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council of the City of Maple Heights, County of
Cuyahoga, State of Ohio, do hereby certify the above to be a true and exact copy of the original as
contained in the records of my office and that the same has been and will remain duly posted as
required by law.

Date:

Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council

Resolution No. 2021-131
Page Two



RESOLUTION NO.: 2021-132

INTRODUCED BY: Mayor Annette M. Blackwell
MOTION FOR ADOPTION BY:
CO-SPONSORED BY:

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH THE NORTHEAST OHIO REGIONAL SEWER DISTRICT
(NEORSD) FOR COMMUNITY COST-SHARE PROGRAM FUNDS FOR THE
LEE ROAD AND MUSTANG DRIVE SEWER REPAIRS IN THE CITY OF
MAPLE HEIGHTS AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the City of Maple Heights is currently operating under the Ohio EPA’s National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Storm Water General Permit Coverage (Small MS4 General
Permit) which gives authorization to discharge to the surface waters of Ohio; and

WHEREAS, the Ohio EPA’s NPDES Storm Water General Permit for a Small MS4 (Municipal
Separate Storm Water System) requires the City of Maple Heights to provide effective storm water
management by various methods including enacting Minimum Control Measures (MCMs); and

WHEREAS, the Ohio EPA’s MCM #3 - Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination is a program that
detects and eliminates cross-connections, dumping of wastes or other non-storm water discharges not
authorized by a separate NPDES permit; and

WHEREAS, the Cuyahoga County Department of Public Works, has been contracted by the City of
Maple Heights to operate and maintain both the sanitary and stormwater systems located within its Municipal
boundaries; and

WHEREAS, the Cuyahoga County Department of Public Works coordinates with the Northeast Ohio
Regional Sewer District (NEORSD) to provide the City of Maple Heights with services, including the
administration of Ohio EPA’s MCM #3, and has informed the Service Director and City Engineer that wastes
or other non-storm water discharges, not authorized by a separate NPDES permit, have been detected in the
vicinity of 5401 Lee Road and 14140 Mustang Drive; and

WHEREAS, the Cuyahoga County Department of Public Works has determined that the non-storm
water discharges detected in the vicinity of 5401 Lee Road and 14140 Mustang Drive are being caused by a
combination of broken, damaged or cross connected storm and sanitary sewer pipes; and

WHEREAS, the Cuyahoga County Department of Public Works has determined that the cost to repair
the broken, damaged, or cross connected storm and sanitary sewer pipes in the vicinity of 5401 Lee Road and
14140 Mustang Drive as required to eliminate the non-storm water discharges will be approximately One
Hundred Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($100,000.00); and

WHEREAS, the NEORSD provides funding to Member Communities, including the City of Maple
Heights, for community specific storm water management projects under the Community Cost-Share Program

(CCS); and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer and the Service Director have been informed by the NEORSD that
repairs to the storm and sanitary sewers in the vicinity of 5401 Lee Road and 14140 Mustang Drive would
effectively implement Ohio EPA’s MCM #3 and thus qualify as a storm water management project eligible
for Community Cost-Share Program funds; and



WHEREAS, the City Engineer and the Service Director were successful in their application to the
NEORSD for the disbursement of Community Cost-Share Program funds as required to make repairs to the
storm and sanitary sewers in the vicinity of 5401 Lee Road and 14140 Mustang Drive in the amount of One
Hundred Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents. ($100,000.00).

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Maple Heights, County of
Cuyahoga, State of Ohio that:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute a Community Cost-Share
Agreement and any other documents with the NEORSD as required for the disbursement of Community Cost-
Share Program funds in the total amount of One Hundred Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($100,000.00)
and to direct the Cuyahoga County Department of Public Works to proceed with the repairs to the storm and
sanitary sewers in the vicinity of 5401 Lee Road and 14140 Mustang Drive in the City of Maple Heights. The
City Engineer and Service Director are hereby authorized to coordinate with the Cuyahoga County
Department of Public Works as required to make the repairs.

Section 2. The Council of the City of Maple Heights hereby authorizes the Finance Director to amend
the appropriations as required for the expenditures outlined within this Resolution.

Section 3. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating
to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting on the date indicated below, and that all
deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action, were in meetings
open to the public in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised
Code.

Section 4. This Resolution constitutes an emergency measure necessary for the health and general
welfare of the residents of the City, and to begin the project in a timely manner to eliminate the pollutant
discharges, and provided it receives the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members elected to Council,
it shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor, otherwise it shall
take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: , 2021

Ron Jackson, Council President

Annette M. Blackwell, Mayor

Approved as to legal form:

Frank Consolo, Director of Law

Resolution No. 2021-132
Page Two



ATTEST:

Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council

I, Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council of the City of Maple Heights, County of
Cuyahoga, State of Ohio, do hereby certify the above to be a true and exact copy of the original as
contained in the records of my office and that the same has been and will remain duly posted as

required by law.

Date:

Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council

Resolution No. 2021-132
Page Three



ORDINANCE NO.: 2021-133

INTRODUCED BY: Mayor Annette M. Blackwell
MOTION FOR ADOPTION BY:
CO-SPONSORED BY:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A
CONTRACT WITH WASTE MANAGEMENT OF OHIO, INC. FOR
RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, DISPOSAL AND RECYCLING
SERVICES FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2022-DECEMBER 31, 2026, WITH
THE OPTION FOR TWO (2) ONE-YEAR RENEWAL PERIODS, AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2021-102, Council authorized the Service
Director to prepare bid specifications for a new 5-year contract for residential solid waste
collection, disposal and recycling services and to advertise for bids for said services; and

WHEREAS, the bid specifications were prepared and invitations to bid were issued and
advertised on September 22 and 29, 2021, with bids to be submitted by October 13, 2021; and

WHEREAS, after a bid opening on October 13, 2021, Waste Management of Ohio, Inc.
was determined to be the lowest and best bidder.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Maple
Heights, County of Cuyahoga, State of Ohio, that:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Waste
Management for residential solid waste collection, disposal and recycling services for the five-
year period January 1, 2022-December 31, 2026, with two (2) one-year renewal options, a copy
of said contract being on file in the office of the Law Director.

Section 2. The funds for said services shall be paid from Fund 251- Solid Waste
Collection.

Section 3. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting on the date
indicated below, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public in compliance with all legal
requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 4. This Ordinance constitutes an emergency measure necessary for the public
safety, health and welfare of the residents of the City and for the further reason that it is
necessary to execute the contract in a timely manner and provided it receives the affirmative vote
of two-thirds (2/3) of the members elected to Council, it shall take effect and be in force
immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor, otherwise it shall take effect and be in
force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.



PASSED: , 2021

Ron Jackson, Council President

Annette M. Blackwell, Mayor
Approved as to legal form:

Frank Consolo, Director of Law

ATTEST:
Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council

I, Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council of the City of Maple Heights, County of
Cuyahoga and State of Ohio, do hereby certify the above to be a true and exact copy of the
original as contained in the records of my office and that the same has been and will remain duly
posted as required by law.

Date:

Leonette Cicirella Johnson, Clerk of Council

Ordinance No. 2021-133
Page Two



